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Addendum Number (1) One forms part of the contract documents and modifies them 
in the manner and extent set forth below.  
 
ATTENTION CONTRACTORS 
 

 Change to Submission Deadline 

 Questions and Answers 

 Attachments 
o 9/14/12 Water and Wastewater Financial Plan Report 

 
RFP Submission Deadline Change 
The City of Rio Rancho, Department of Financial Services, will receive sealed 
proposals for the above mentioned project, no later than Tuesday, November 08, 
2016, at 10:00 a.m. local time.  Sealed proposals shall be delivered to the City Clerk’s 
Office, located at 3200 Civic Center Circle, Suite 150, Rio Rancho, New Mexico 
87144. 
 
Questions and Answers 
 
Question: Is assessment/planning/cost estimating of the Waste Water Collection 
System required for the Wastewater Master Plan?  Or is the Waste Water Master Plan 
focused ONLY on the Waste Water Treatment Plant and Recycled Water System 
Expansions? 
 
Answer:  No the assessment, planning and cost estimation are part of the Wastewater 
and Recycled Waster Master Plan. 
 



Question: Will the current hydraulic models be provided for both the Waste Water and 
Recycled Water Facilities to the selected consultant? 
 
Answer:  Yes, the hydraulic models will be provided. 
 
Question: The scope of work is specific to a wastewater master plan, but as 
described, the rate study is to include the water system as well.  Does CoRR have 
sufficient information on the required capital improvements needed to the water 
system to provide in order to complete the Rate Study for this utility?  Or will a capital 
improvements plan for the water system need to be included in the scope of work for 
the rate study? 
 
Answer:  The City’s 5 year Infrastructure and Capital Improvement Plan for the water 
system contains all of the information needed to complete the Rate Study. 
 
Question: Will the Operation and Maintenance costs show sufficient detail to the 
complete the Rate Study for the 3 categories required? 
 
Answer:  The Operation and Maintenance expenditure budget has the detail 
necessary to complete the Rate Study. 
 
Question: Under Exhibit A, Task 4, will the Financial Plan include Water or just 
Wastewater and Recycled Water? 
 
Answer:  Study reviews the Water, Wastewater and Recycled Water rates therefore 
the financial plan will also include Water, Wastewater and Recycled Water. 
 
Question: Will the selected team be provided the RedOak Rate Study performed in 
2013? 
 
Answer:  Yes. 
 
Question: Section 4.3.5 talks about including three references. Has the City done 
away with the Reference Forms that had been distributed? Thus, we should include 
contact information for references for three projects in the narrative itself. 
 
Answer:  This RFP did not include the Reference Forms.  Please provide the 
information detailed in Section 4.3.5. 
 
Question: What has the City budgeted for Tasks 1 and 2 – Master Plan and Cost 
Estimate? 
 
Answer:  The City chooses not to release the amount budgeted for the Master Plan 
and Rate Study as the City wants to receive a competitive proposal. 
 



Question: What has the City budgeted for Tasks 3 and 4 – Rate Study and Financial 
Plan? 
 
Answer:  The City chooses not to release the amount budgeted for the Master Plan 
and Rate Study as the City wants to receive a competitive proposal. 
 
Question: We understand that the City has asked for a traditional, comprehensive, 
cost of service rate study, which consists of three related components: Financial Plan, 
Cost of Service, and Rate Design.  To what extent will the City provide previous 
consultant reports, models, and other work products for each of these components?  
Or, is it the City’s intention to create a completely new suite of rate study models and 
other tools? 
 
Answer:  The city is providing a copy of the rate study with this addendum, any 
additional tools the consultant thinks are valuable can be listed as part of the RFP. 
 
Question: Section 4.2.2, Cost Proposal, page 13, references the “Offeror’s Proposed 
Work Plan”.  Section 3.2.1, Proposal Format, page 11, indicates that the Cost 
Proposal is not included in the total page count (10 pages maximum).  Is the “Work 
Plan” also outside of the total page count, if it is to be included with the cost proposal?   
 
Answer:  Section 4.2.2 Cost Proposal should read: Offerors shall submit an itemized 
proposal for each task listed on the Scope of Work, Exhibit A.  The Work Plan should 
be submitted with as detailed in Section 4.3.2 and is included in the 10 page proposal. 
 
Question: Please indicate what demographic/population/growth data or studies, etc. 
will be provided by the City to estimate flows/loadings at the Wastewater Treatment 
Facilities over the 20-year planning period.   
 
Answer:  The City intends to use estimates from the University of New Mexico – 
Bureau of Business and Economic Research and data from the City’s Development 
Services Department. 
 
Question: As the project does not include a master plan update for the Water Utility, 
please indicate what water master planning data or studies (i.e. financial reports, 
capital improvement plans, treatment, supply and distribution projects, etc.) will be 
provided for the water utility component of the rate study.   
 
Answer:  The City’s 5 year Infrastructure and Capital Improvement Plan for the water 
system contains all of the information needed to complete the Rate Study. 
 
Question: Can the City provide the most current Utilities Rate Study, conducted by 
Red Oak Consulting (2012)?   
 
Answer:  Yes, please see the attached study. 
 



Question: It is our practice to complete certain components of the Financial Plan 
(Task 4 in RFP) prior to completing the Cost-of-Service and Rate Design (Task 3 in 
RFP).  Is this approach acceptable?   
 
Answer:  This approach is acceptable. 
 
Question: The RFP states that an electronic copy of the computer rate model will be 
delivered, and owned by, Rio Rancho for the three utilities at the conclusion of the rate 
study. In addition, it states that one file, with multiple worksheets, is to be developed 
for each utility. Below are a couple of follow-up questions regarding this section of the 
RFP, as follows: 

a. The individual, Excel based, files for the Finance Plan, Cost-of-Service, 
and Rate Design have multiple worksheets within them. Would Rio Rancho 
consider acceptance of separate files for each of these major initiatives by 
fund?   
b. We have two approaches to rate model development, one where we 
provide license to our prior works and another where we custom build the 
models.  Typically, our budget includes licensing prior works which will require 
inclusion of reasonable terms for the protection of the intellectual property (IP).  
The license is basically a confidentiality agreement. Is Rio Rancho all right with 
this kind of arrangement? The City would rather have a separate model.  Is it 
acceptable to include additional intellectual property terms in the standard MSA 
provided by Rio Rancho?   

 
Answer:   a. No, we would like everything included in one file. 
  b. Please provide information on both options and the City will determine 
  what is the best option for it’s needs.  
 
All other provisions of the Contract Documents shall remain unchanged. Each 
Offeror should ensure that they have received all addenda and amendments to 
this RFP before submitting their proposal.   
 
 
























































